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Located in the wvillaye of Christ Church aboulb fwo and a half

parish church of Chrisc Church Parish in Middlesex County is a rectangular
building with a gable roof and exterior dimensions of sixty feet by thirty
three and a half feet, The fine Flemish bond on the southern and western
walls is characterized by its glazed headers and although the remaining walls
are laid in Flemish bond, their surface is only occasionally marked by the
plazed masonvy. chcral courses just below the cornice have been rebuilt.
T the original order for the construction the bricks were to be two and one
half bricks thick above the watertable and one and one half in the gables,
The ovolo watertable which encircles the building was ordered ito be threc
bricks thick and appears to have been repointed especially on the south wall.
Thie vestry ovrders also indicate that the gable roof was originally intended
to be clipped. Today rubbed brick and quecn closers mark the corners of the
building. The queen closers which flank many of the present window openings
show that the windows have been altered and that they had previously hung at
a slightly higher level.

A gabled roof vestibule which was added to the church in the
1843 restorvation, shelters the entrance to the western end. The vestibule
has arched four-panel double doors, the superior panels of which form a
bisccted fanlight. Brick pilasters flank the door and above the entrance a
wolded cornice entcloses the brick pediment which is pierced by a blind oculus
Upen the glazed header base of this western wall sits the repaired gable end
Whlch is distinguished by an oculus and raking cornice.

On the south side of the church glazed headers are used in a
substantial portien of the wall. Today four semi-circular arched windows
light the south side of the building. The fourth was created inm 1931 when
the door to the chancel on the south side was made into a rather diminished
window. The original doorway hung at a lower level than the other windows
and resulted in this diminution of the scale. Although the bay is now Ifour
feat wide, the early doorway was ordered to be six feet four inches tall by
threce feet wide. Below the watertable the queen closers that mark the !
colonial opening help to support the contention that the door was four feet
wide. When augmented by the typical trim, this width would probably be
necessary te form a finished opening of six feet four inches by three feet.
It scems that the jambs of the windows on this side have been replaced or
repointed. '

The northern wall has three windows similar to those on the
south side. In 1931 a doorway was created in the northeast corner ol the
wall to give access to the newly constructed sacristy. Although it is
nossible that this doorway replaced a window, parish opinion generally i
recollects only three windows in existence before 1931. Of the other threc
churches built in the parish during this decade none had more than threoe
windows to a side. The one bay sacristy on the north side has & nipped xoof
plerced by a chimney and a door on the north.

On the east end of the church where a great chancel window
once occupied the space, the wall is cut by a smaller arched window which was
installed in 1843. Although the exact shape and height of the earlier bay
is uncertain, a width of ten feet can be determined by the evidence of gueen
closers which flank the present bay. The exact shape of the window can not

be ascertained because the great window head extended beyond the surviving

See continuation sheet.
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J carly brickwork. A rather vague set of specifications decribed the ordercd
window "to be from the arch within six fect of the sill, ten foot wide."
This is taken by James Scott Rawliugs, the authority on Virginia's colonial
churches, to wmean that the window was ten fect wide and the height of the
wvindow wias to extend from the bottom of the arch down to within six feet of the
wooden floor, Rawlings speculates that the window might have been similar to
the semi-circular window at St. Peters in New Kent County or to another of
comparable dimensions at the Lower Chapel at Christ Church.

On the interior the low box pews line the central aisle which
is paved with flagstones bought in 1931 from the Upper Church of 1773 located
at Churchview, Today the ceiling curves in a low graceful ellipse above the
interior which was completely destroyed during the "Disestablishment.’ It is
not possible to say how the pews and the pulpit were arvanged because althought
the vestry records exist, they supply only issued requests and make no dis-
tinction between those ordered and those carried out. During one of the
restorations when plaster was being removed, a large square hole in the north
wall twelve feet from the east wall was discovered and may have been the
socket of the large beam of the rood screen. This rood screen was undoubtedl
wooden with balusters or tracery above the lower panels. The Christ Church
Vestry Book of 1666 cites the precedent of a rood screen in the first Christ
Church: "Item. That ye Mother Church be called by the name of Christ Church
+seessbullding the Méther Church, in every respect to be done and finished
according to the Middle Plantacon Church (in Williamsburg), to be finished in
six months, glass and iron worke convenient time to be given for its trans-
portation out of England.”

In 1942 the Garden Club of Virginia enlarged the area of the
colonial churchyard and encircled the region with a high brick wall. An
outstanding assortment of cclonial tombs are laid out to the south and the ;
east of the church. To the south are found three table tombs whose panelled
sides end in corners splayed with bulbous scrolls. Other decorative motifs
such as ellipses, fans, fluting, and acanthus leaves ornament the macnificent
collection of tomb sculpture. An attempt to restore some of the tombs has at|
least reunited the fragments which had been scattered about the churchyard.
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f now incorporated into the tympanum of the western vestibule, bear the

Begun in 1712 and finished in 1714, Christ Church in Middlesex
County is the second parish church to be constructed on this site and is
an invaluable vestige of one of Virginia's most significant colonial
parishes. Preserved in its country setting, amid elaborately sculptured
colonial tombs, Christ Church evokes the tradition of such illustrious
Virginians as Sir Henry Chicheley, a seventeenth century deputy governox
and Ralph Wormeley of Rosegill. The original mother chureh was bullt in
1666 when Chrlst Church parish was cstablished from a union of Launcaster
and Peanckatanck parishes. In spite of this union, Christ Church Parish
continued to bear evidence of the earlier divisions in that it was composed
of three precincts which included the Upper Parish (Lancaster) served by
three chapels, the Lower Parisn (Peanckatanck) served by two chapels, and
the Middle Parish which had the mother church.

The*'records relating to the construction of Christ Church are
supported by several inscriptions on the church itself, Three bricks, :

inscribed date 1714 which marked the completion of the walls of the second
. church. In addition, the letters "IH" upon one of these bricks refers to |

John Hipkin who is credited with the carpentry, "plumbing" and gla21ng.
Two other bricks are marked with "EC'" and a form.-of "HI" respectively,
and the name "W. Johnson' appears on a fourth. Christ Church's mason,
*Alexander Graves, left no initial in his work.

Like many Anglican churches across Virginia, Christ Church was ;
abandoned during the Disestablishment following the Revolution. Althougn
the parish was represented at the Diocesan Council of 1821, litctle evidence
0f church activity from 1813 to 1840 remains. In his book 01d Churches, |
Ministers, and Families of Virginia, written in 1857, Bishop William \LQQL]
eloquently described the situation at Ghrist Church: "And what has become
of the old Mother-Church - the Great Church, as she is styled in her journal
- standing in view of the wide Rappahannock, midway between Roscgill and
Brandon? More perhaps than fifty years ago it was deserted. Its roof
decayed and fell in. Everything within it returned to its native dusc.
But nature abhores a vacuum. A sycamore~tree sprung up within its walls."
By 1840 when the parish's revival was initiated, the cupola (ordered in
i718), the stone aisles (1731) and the churchyard wall (1733) were gone.

The church's first restoration, which commenced in 1843, included
the conversion of the chancel into a vestry, the reduction of the large

chancel window and the addition of the vestibule on the west. At some
later date the chancel was again established. Further renovations took |
place around 1931 when the sacristy was built on the east end of the morth

See continuation sheet.
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side, also a window was created from the doorway on the south and a new floor was
was installed in the chancel. The flagstones along the center aisle of the [
church were also purchased in 1931 from the Upper Church of 1773 located at
hurchview.

The parlsh is fortunate in owning the ouly colonial vestry boo
which predates Bacon 5 Rebellion of 1676, Beginning with the record of
Lancaster (Upper) Parish in 1663, the book bears the mcord of the united
Christ Church Parish from 1666 to 1767. The church silver, damaged by fire
and remoulded in 1855 by S. Kirk and Son of Baltimore, remains a vestige of th
original set given to the church in 1687 by the first Ralph Wormeley of
Rosegill. :
The fine colonial and early republic tombs within the church-
yard attest to the importance of the church's colonial congregation. The
grave of Sir Henry Chicheley, Knight and Deputy Governor from 1678 to 1680 is
" located bencath the Communion Table. Here beneatih the church lies Lady
Madame Catherine Wormeley who died in 1685 and was the wife of the firstRalpnh
Wormeley and later of Chicheley. On the southside of the churchyard lics ‘
the tomb of John Grymes of Brandon in Middlesex County and on the cast side of{
the church are found a majority of the Wormeley family tombs. Among the later
gencrations of the Wormeley family buried at Christ Church are Ralph Wormeley !
of Rosegill who dled in 1806 and his wife Eleanor Tayloe Wormeley who died ninc
years later.

:
!

In 1921 the Episcopal Diocese established the Christchurch
School, a boys preparatory school, on land adjacent to the churchyard. !
Christchurch now serves not only as a parish church but as a chapel for the
school.
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